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GCM Global Energy Plc
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report and the financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended

31 December 2012 In this report GCM Global Energy plc and its subsidianes are referred to as “the Group” or
“GCM”

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities dunng the year were o1l and gas exploration, production of crude o1l and natural
gas and coal mumng The Group's activities are carned oul internationally with the focus being on Azerbayan,
Russia, Kazakhstan and other former CIS countries

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Greup's profit after taxation for the year amounted to 323 9m (2011 $110 ém) The EBITDA for the year,
excluding the results of discontinued operations, was $250 3m (2011 $221 9m) and the Group generated
$145 8m of net cash flow from 1its operating activities (2011 $121 4m)

The Directors are unable to recommend the payment of a dividend
OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

GCM made good strategic and operational progress in 2012 represented by an increase in EBITDA and net cash
flow from operating activities as indicated 1n the Results and Dividends section Total o1l reserves increased to
156MMBDbI and coal reserves to 498m tonnes

In May 2012, via an intermediate holding company Trovidor Enterpnises Limuted, GCM Global Energy Plc
acquired a 50% equity shareholding (and voting nights) in JSC CaspiNeft a joint venture mncorporated 1n the
Republic of Kazakhstan Its key focus areas include the activities connected with procurement, exploration,
development, production, processing and export of raw hydrocarbons The main operating o1l-and-gas activities
of CaspiNeft are carmed out in the Arankol Field, located 1n the Zhylyoisky District of the Atyrau Oblast

The Group has continued to develop 1its relationships with leading international financial institutions, including
BNP Panbas and Deutsche Bank In November 2012 the Group started the refinancing of the existing facility
through syndication which was successfully closed in April 2013 It also structured with BNP Panibas an o1l
commodity instrument (“cap and collar”), which expires on 31 December 2013, i order to manage the Group’s
exposure to o1l price movements The contract 1s for 2 nommal number of barrels totalling 1,384,500 over the
period up to 31 December 2013 which fixed the sales price when it moved above $120 or below $90 per barrel

The Board continues to monitor the performance of the Group with the Comprehensive Income Statement and
production related Key Performance Indicators (“KPI") and regularly reviews these KPIs at Board Meetings
The Board also receives monthly management information, weekly production reports and cash position
statements across the Group’s mternational accounts A reduction in Net Profit was mamly due to the
mmpairment of two o1l fields in Azerbayan In 2012 GCM recorded a sigmficant increase 1n production as a
result of the acquisition of JSC CaspiNeft This acquisition also had a positive impact on the operating costs per
barrel due a more efficient production profile in Kazakhstan

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

KPI 2012 2011
Production (average bopd) 16,903 13,673
Proven Reserves (Mboe) 102 | 771
Proven and Probable Reserves (Mboe) i563 127 2
Proven coal reserves (Mtonnes) 403 305
Revenue from continuing operations (US3 *000s) 509,980 520,328
Net profit after tax (US$ '000s) 239 1106
Operating costs average per boe (US$/bbl) 2535 287
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GCM Global Energy Plc
DIRECTORS' REPORT

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Group remains focused on the energy sector with the goal to become an integrated energy business with
assets across all sectors including coal mimng and o1l and gas n order to provide a competitive shareholder
refurn

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group elected to participate in a hedging arrangement with BNP Parbas to bring security to the Group's
revenue from o1l sales The contract was effective from November 2012 and expires on 31 December 2013 and
1t 1s a ‘cap and collar’ option with GCM buymng a put option at US$90/bbl and selling a call option at
US$120/bbl  The total volume under the hedge was 3,250 bbls/day GCM wviewed this hedging agreement as
prudent nsk management, due to continuing volatility 1n the energy markets over the last 5 years

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management 1s central to how the Group runs s busintess and 1s fundamental to value creation and
deltvery of substantial returns to shareholders It 1s an integral part of the business model and 15 a Board level
responsibility GCM approach to nsk management aims to 1dentify key risks as early as possible and to either
reduce or remove those nisks

Macroeconomic environment 2012 was charactensed by uncertanty dniven by a mixed set of
economic indicators and geo-pohitical circumstances around the
globe In the Euro-zone, the fiscal crisis continued and a double-dip
recession threatened the UK and other major European economtes
Econormc growth began to slow moderately m China, which
mmpacted a fragile global economy A slow and steady economic
recovery commenced i the US However, global economuc
uncertainty was compounded by geo-political unrest around the
world during the year

Commodity price risk Brent crude started the year at $102 7/bbl and decreased
approximately 11% 1n the first six months of 2012, reaching a low
of $90/bbl The o1l price recovered over the course of the second
half of 2012 to $109 9/bbl Whale the drop wn o1l price 1n the first
half was driven by doubt around economic growth, in the second
half the recovery 1n price was motivated by heightened political risk
m key producing countnies Owerall, global o1l demand grew
marginally in 2012 from 88 7 mullion barrels a day to 89 8 mullion
barrels a day A complex combination of abnormally high levels of
global economic and geo-political uncertamnty 1s making the
difficult job of forecasting o1l demand and pricing even harder At
present, o1l demand growth 15 expected to be slow 1n 2013, while o1l
price forecasts are currently very divergent Given the instability
with Brent Crude prices through the course of 2012, GCM elected
to hedge approximately 25% of its total production Please see the
‘Financial Instruments’ section above for further details

Interest rate and hquidity risk GCM Global Energy has vartous creditors providing iquidity and
financing 1o the group Where possible, GCM endeavours to lumit
1ts exposure to interest rate nisk through structuring credit facilities
using a fixed interest rate, or using interest rate denvatives to hedge
exposure and gain visibility on financing costs going forward
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GCM Global Energy Plc
DIRECTORS' REPORT

Foreign Exchange nisk The GCM Group has ongoing operations it a number of geographic
regions As a result, the group 15 exposed to movements in vanous
carrencies  which can mpact the underlying costs and
revenues The Group secks to mutigate these nisks by momtonng
the regional economic situation and maintaining currency reserves
as necessary

Political Risk Business operations in Azerbayan, Russia and Kazakhstan carry

certain elements of nisk relating to unexpected changes 1n regulatory
and legal chimates which could sigmficantly impact GCM’s
business As a mutigaung factor, GCM continues to nurture,
develop and grow 1ts relationships with semor government officials
and business leaders 1n the regions where 1t conducts 1ts operations

Environmental nisk The Group understands 1ts responsibility to mamntain and manage its
obligatrons to rummmze environmental umpact GCM 1s commutted
to working with local governments and other agencies to ensure safe
procedures and operations 1n order to remain 1n good standing 1n all
communties in which the Group operates

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group 15 committed to Corporate Social Responsibility and has implemented a number of policies across
the following areas

+  Equal opportunities across the Group,
s  Health and Safety, and
» Environmental impact and recovery

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made donations to non-UK chantable orgamsations totalling $90,000 (2011
$224,000)

EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR

A new Reserve Based Lending syndicated facihity for $100m was successfully closed on 18 Apnl 2013 The
syndication included BNP Panbas, Deutsche Bank, Amsterdam Trade Bank N V and the Federated Project and
Trade Finance Core Fund The facility matures on 31 December 2016

BRANCHES OF THE BUSINESS

The Company has a representative office 1n Moscow which 1s engaged 1n marketing and business development
acuvities
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GCM Global Energy Plc
DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS
The following directors have held office since 1 January 2012

M Kalyuzhny
R Dubrovskaya
A A Zhuchenko

DIRECTORS' QUALIFYING THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has agreed that it shall to the maximum extent permitted by law, but subject to any limitation
mmposed by law and n particular sections 232 and 234 of the Compames Act 2006, indemmfy the directors
agamnst all Liabihities, costs and expenses (including any legal and other reasonable professional costs and
expenses) incurred by them directly ansing from or in connection with the execution and discharge of their
duties as directors of the Company

CREDITORS’ PAYMENT POLICY

It 15 Group policy to agree and communicate clearly the terms of payment as part of the commercial
arrangements negotiated with suppliers and then to pay according to these based on the timely receipt of an
accurate mvoice At 31 December 2012, there were 65 days (2011 68 days) purchases outstanding 1n trade
payables

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

The directors have confirmed that, as far as they are aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the
auditor 1s unaware Each of the directors have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as directors, 1n order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that it has been communicated to the auditor

GOING CONCERN

The directors have considered the appropriateness of the going concern basis in the preparation of these
financial statements and are satisfied that the company and the group are going concerns The statement headed
“CGioing Concern” on page 17 sets out certain factors considered by the directors in making this assessment
AUDITOR

Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP, Chartered Accountants, has indicated its willingness te continue in office

On behalf of the Board

£

R Dubrovskaya
Director

19 July 2013

Page 5




GCM Global Energy Plc

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN THE PREPARATION
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and company financial statements for each financial
year The directors have elected under company law to prepare group and company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union
(“EU™)

The financial statements are required by law and IFRS adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position
of the group and the company and the financial performance of the group The Companies Act 2006 provides in
relation to such financial statements that references 1n the relevant part of that Act to financial statements giving
a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit or loss of the
group for that penod

In prepanng the group and company financial statements, the directors are required to

a select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

b make judgements and accounting estumates that are reasonable and prudent,

c state whether they have been prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs adopted by the EU,

d prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropnate to presume that the
group and the company will continue n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
group’s and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the group and the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply wath the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other uregulanties
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GCM GLOBAL
ENERGY PLC

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (“the financial statements™) on pages 9 to
55 The financial reporting framework that has been applied i their preparation 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion and, as regards the
parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As more fully explammed in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 6, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view OQur responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descrniption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB’s website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on the financial statements

In our opinion

e the financial statements give a true and fairr view of the state of the group’s and the parent’s affairs as at 31
December 2012 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

e the group financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union,

s the parent financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance wath the Compames Act 2006, and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006

Emphases of matters: uncertainties regarding production sharing agreements and bank borrowings

In forming our opimon on the financial statements, which 1s not modified, we have considered the adequacy of
the disclosures made 1n note 30 to the financial statements concerning the breach of o1l production targets 1n
three of the group’s production sharing agreements and the pledge of the shares n a subsidiary and bank loan
covenant breach

Three group compamies were not able to achieve the daily production level mmmimums as required under the
provisions of the Agreements on the Rehabilitation, Exploration, Development and Production Sharing
(“PSAs”} Failure to perform such obligation 15 a matenal breach of the PSAs and gives the State 01l Company
the night to terminate the PSAs The group has previously been successful in agreeing extensions in relation to
the PSAs, but there 15 no certanty that extensions will be agreed If the agreements were terminated, the
beneficial ownership of the relevant o1l field assets would pass to the State 01l Company and the group would
lose the nght to produce o1l from the relevant fields The aggregate net book value of the relevant o1l field assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2012 was $296 Sm

The shares in OAO Krasnoyarskkraiugol (“KKU”), a group company, are pledged to a bank as secunty in
respect of loans made by that bank to a company (“the borrower”) which 1s related to the group If the borrower
defaults on the loans, the bank would be entitled to enforce the pledge If the pledge was enforced, the group
would cease to have beneficial ownership of KKU Subsequent to the vear end, KKU has breached financial
covenants under separate loan agreements with the same bank and as a result these loans are currently repayable
on demand The directors of KKU have been in discussions wath the bank and they are confident that the breach
will be rectified and future covenant terms will be amended but there 1s no certainty that such an agreement will
be reached The net assets attributable to KKU in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2012 were $42 4m

The ultimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be deterrmned and the financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would be necessary 1f the PSAs were to be terminated and/or the bank enforced its
rights under the share pledge or breach of covenant
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GCM GLOBAL
ENERGY PLC

Opimon on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimion the information given n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to

report to you 1f, 1n our opinion

s adequate accounting records have not been Kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

s the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Echer T, UL Ache (P

RICHARD COATES (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of BAKER TILLY UK AUDIT LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

25 Farmngdon Street

London EC4A 4AB

19 July 2013
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GCM Global Energy Plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2012

Revenue

Profit on disposal of subsidiary
Share of results of joint ventures
Interest and other income

Production costs

Production and similar taxes

Employee costs

Distnibution expenses

Adminstration expenses

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation
(Impawrment) / net reversal of impaiwrment of assets
Loss on commodity pnice derivative

Loss on foreign exchange

Profit before interest and taxation

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year from continuing operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Total profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year

Notes

29
22

10

36

Restated
2012 2011
$'000 $000
509,980 520,328
- 31,615
61,894 -
16,996 7,844
588,870 559,788
(84,647) (83,956)
(33,690) (33,166)
(78,462) (75,660)
(123,709) (123,081)
(16,431) (21,349)
(77,790) (80,477
(76,014) 38,399
(307) (40}
(1,308) (547)
(492,358) (379,877)
96,512 179,911
(77,051} (68,424)
19.461 111,487
4,423 (3,533)
23,884 107,954
- 2,642
23,884 110,596
2,173 (4,323)
26,057 106,273
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GCM Global Energy Plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent

From continuing operations

From discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Total profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year attnibutable to
Ownmers of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the year

2012 Restated
$'000 2011
$'000

33,751 76,959
- 2,642
33,751 79,601
(9,867) 30,995
(9,867) 30,995
23,834 110,596
35,924 75,776
(9,867) 30,497
26,057 106,273

The notes and accounting policies on pages 17 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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GCM Global Energy Plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2012 Company registration number 6382557
Notes Restated Restated
Group Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011
£°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets i 44,146 34,642 641 - -
Property, plant and equipment i2 793,791 846,102 749,339 301 533
Investment 1n subsidianes 14 - - - 90,647 88,623
Investment 1n joint venture 15 55,917 12 - - -
Loans and other recervables 13 25476 3,538 4655 11,066 -
Total non-current assets 919,330 884,294 754,635 102,014 89,156
Current assets
Inventories 16 34,977 27,317 22,861 - -
Trade and other receivables 17 131,150 130,063 60,090 645 1,703
Income tax prepayments 559 623 549 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 18 19,839 27,837 18,806 431 9,839
Total current assets 186,525 185,840 102,306 1,076 11,542
Non-current assets classified as
held for sale 36 - - 40,690 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 1,105,855 1,070,134 897,631 103,090 100,698
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 36,394 102,627 165,870 753 11,346
Financial liabilities 20 596,789 123,903 71,362 - -
Current tax liabilities - 7 840 - -
Fair value of derivatives 22 386 40 - - -
Total current liabilities 693,569 226,577 238,072 753 11,346

Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities 20 383,355 828,153 728,171 - -
Provisions 21 20,073 16,359 13,246 - -
Deferred tax habilities 24 11,679 17,049 8,624 - -
Fair value of denvatives 22 - 461 889 - -
Total non-current liabilities 415,107 862,022 750,930 - -
Liabilities associated with non-

current assets held for sale 36 - - 41,165 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,108,676 1,088,599 1,030,167 753 11,346
NET (LTABILITIES) / ASSETS (2,821) (18,465) (132,536) 102,337 89,352
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GCM Global Energy Plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2012

Company registration number 6382557

Restated Restated
Notes Group Group Group Company Company

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011

$7000 $7000 5000 $°000 $°000
EQUITY
Equty attributable to owners of
the parent
Called up share capital 25 29,312 29312 29,312 29,312 29,312
Centributed capatal 88,611 88,611 88,611 88,611 88,611
Translation reserve (2,092) (4,265) (440) - -
Retained deficit (32,415 (63,337) (142,938) (15,586) (28,571)
Total equity attributable to
owners of the parent 83,416 50,321 (25,455) 102,337 89,352
Non-controlling interests (86,237) (68,786) (107,081) - -
TOTAL EQUITY . (2,821) (18,465) (132,536) 102,337 89,352

The financial statements on pages 9 to 55 were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 19

July 2013 and are signed on its behalf by

YRy 778

R Dubrovskaya, Director

The notes and accounting policies on pages 17 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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GCM Global Energy Plc
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2012

Attributable to the equity owners of the parent

Non-

Share Contributed Translaion  Retaned controlling
GROUP capital capital reserve deficut Total interest Total

$000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
AT 1 JANUARY 2011
RESTATED 29,312 88,611 (440) (142,938)  (25,455) (107,081) (132,536)
Profit for the year - - - 79,601 79,601 30,995 110,596 i

i

Other comprehensive income i
Currency translation
adjustments - - (3,825) - (3,825) (498) (4,323)
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (3,825) 79,601 75,776 30,497 106,273
Transactions with owners
Non-controlling interest on
acquisition {note 38) - - - - - 7,798 7,798
Total transactions with
owners in their capacity as
owners - - - - - 7,798 7,798
AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
RESTATED 29,312 88,611 (4,265)  (63,337) 50,321 (68,786) (18,465}
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - 33,751 33,751 (9,867 23,884
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation |
adjustments - - 2,173 - 2,173 - 2,173 l
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 2,173 33,751 35,924 (9,867) 26,057
Transactions with owners
Acquisition of non-controlling
nterest share (Note 38) - - - (2,829) (2,829 (6,990) (9.819) |
Non-controlling interest
dividends - - - - - (594) (594)
Total transactions with
owners in their capacity as
owners - - - (2,829) (2,829) (7,584) (10,413)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 29,312 88,611 (2,092) (32,415 83,416 (86,237) (2,821)

The notes and accounting policies on pages 17 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements
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GCM Global Energy Plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2012

COMPANY

AT 1 JANUARY 2011

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners

AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners

AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

Share
capital
$°000

29,312

29,312

Contmbuted
capital
$7000

88,611

]

88,611

Retained
deficit
$7000
(27,761)

(810)

(810)

(28,571)

12,985

12,985

(15,586)

—_—

Total
$7000

90,162

(810)

(810)

89,352

12,985

12,985

102,337

The notes and accounting pohcies on pages 17 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements
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GCM Global Energy Plc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 27
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidianies including NCI, net of cash acquired
Proceeds of subsidiary disposals, net of cash transferred
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Interest recerved

Dividends received from joint venture

Net cash used 1n investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings (net of repayments)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest

Interest paid

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities

NET (DECREASE) /INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18

2012
3000

148,023
(2,179}

145,844

(10,170)
10,000

(112,169)
1,649

(100)
272
5,980

(104,529)

5,520
(597)
(54,236)

(49,313)

(7.998)

27,837

19,839

Restated
2011
$'000

127,167
(5,788)

121,379

(30,203)
28,075
(89,333)

30
(34,273)
566

(125,138)

119,478

(106,6883)

12,790

9,031

18,806

27,837

The notes and accounting policies on pages 17 to 55 form an integral part of these consolhidated financial

statements
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GCM Global Energy Plc

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated (absorbed by)/from operations

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loans granted

Dividends from subsidiaries

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from 1ssue of shares

Net cash flow from financing activities

NET (DECREASE) /INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Notes

27

2012
$'000

(1,250)

963
(37)
17
(15,000)
5,899

(8,158)

(9,408)

9,839

431

2011
$'000

4,928

(1,009)

(180)
30

5,191

4,032

8,960

879

9,839

The notes and accounting pohicies on pages 17 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements
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GCM Global Energy Plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

GCM Global Energy Plc (“the Company”), its subsidiaries and share of the joint ventures (“the
Group”) undertakes oil, gas exploration and production and coal muming The group principally
operates 1n Russia, Azerbayan and Kazakhstan

The company 1s a privately owned public limited company, incorporated and domiciled m the UK
The company’s registered office 1s 2™ Floor, 11 Pilgnm Street, London, EC4V 6RN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The consohdated and company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as endorsed by the European Umion (“EU™) The
financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the revaluation of financial
mstruments

As explamned n note 33, the Group has early adopted certain IFRSs for the preparation of these
financial statements In accordance with the requirements of IFRS, comparative results have been
restated where applicable

GOING CONCERN

The directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
1o continue 1 business for the foreseeable future This has been determined by a review of forecast
cash flows and expected trading performance for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements and careful consideration of the contingent habilities and
commitments disclosed 1n note 30

The group 1s pnmanly financed through bank and related party borrowings and there are a number of
key measures in place that will allow the directors to manage the busmness and provide adequate
hquidity These are as follows
s The ability to negotiate increased bank facilities with the existing thurd party provider of
finance,
The ability to borrow from other providers of funds, mamnly private financial mstitutions,
Significant control and flexibility over the group’s development plans and their timing that
will allow 1t, 1f necessary, to conserve capital by delaymng or elumnating capital expenditure,
and
¢ The flexibility to restructure the terms of the existing related party loan facilities

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
to obtain economc benefit for the Group Subsidianies are fully consolidated from the effective date of
acquisition up to the effective date of disposal

The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidianes by the Group
The cost of an acquisition 1s measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity nstruments 1ssued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange Acquisition related costs are recogmsed in profit or
loss as incurred  Identifiable assets acquired and habthities and contngent habilities assumed n a busmess
combination are mitially measured at fair value at the acquisition date

Page 17




GCM Global Energy Plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The excess of cost of acquisihon over the fair values of the Group’s share of 1dennfiable net assets acquired
18 recogmsed as goodwill When the fair value of 1dentifiable net assets acquired exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess (negative goodwill) 1s recogmsed directly in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income However, where subsidianes or interests m joint ventures are acquired from
companes under common control, negative goodwill ansing on such acquisitions (net of any goodwll on
other such transactions) 1s credited directly to equity as contnibuted capital

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used into line with those of the Group

All intra-Group transactions, balances, and unreahsed gamns on transactions between Group compames are
elimunated on consohdatron  Unreahised losses are also ehminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred

Accounting for joint arrangements

A joint arrangement 1s a contractual arrangement which gives two or more parties joint control A joint
arrangement 1s either a joint venture or a jomt operation

A jont venture 15 a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have nghts to the net assets of the arrangement A joint operatton 1s a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement

The group combines its share of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of joint arrangements with its
own, after making appropriate adjustments to eliminate transactions between the group and the joint
arrangement

Investments n jomnt ventures are recogmsed mn the financial staternents using the equity method of
accounting unless they fall to be classified as held for sale They are imtially carmed at cost The Group’s
share of post-acquisitton profits or losses 1s recognised n profit or loss and 1its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income are recogmsed directly 1n other comprehensive income The
carrying value of the investment (including goodwall) 18 tested for impawment when there 1s objective
evidence of impairment Losses m excess of the Group’s mterest in those joint ventures are not recogmsed
unless the Group has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures

Where a group company transacts with a jont venture of the Group, unrealised gams are elimnated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate or jomnt venture Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred in which case
appropnate provision 1s made for impawrment Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of jownt ventures to bring the accounting pohcies used into line with those used by the Group

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The presentational currency 1s the US$ as this 1s the currency which mainly influences the sales price
of the goods and services being delivered and the costs incurred 1n delivering them The exchange rate
between Sterling and the US$ at 31 December 2012 was 1 6153 (2011 1 5453), the official exchange
rate between Azerbayan Manat and the US$ at 31 December 2012 was 0 7850 (2011 0 7865), the
official exchange rate between the Russian Rouble and the US$ at 31 December 2012 was 30 3727
(2011 32 1961), the exchange rate between the Kazakhstan Tenge and the US$ at 31 December 2012
was 150 3759
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transactions are recorded i the functional currency of each reporting entity Transactions In currencies
other than the functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailling on the dates of the
transactions At each reporting date, monetary assets and habihties that are denomnated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting date Non-monetary assets and
liabilities carned at farr value that are denomunated m foreign currencies are transiated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the far value was determmned Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are
included 1n the profit or loss for the peniod, except for exchange differences on non-monetary assets and
liabihties, where the changes in fair value are recogrused in other comprehensive income Other non-
monetary assets and habihities are kept at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date the transaction was
recorded

On consolidation, the assets and habilities reported in funcuonal currencies other than the US$ are
retranslated at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date Income and expense 1tems are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period Exchange differences are recogmised as other comprehensive
income and 1n the Group’s translation reserve

Such translation differences are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which the operation
1s disposed

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE
The Group adopts the successful efforts method of accounting for exploration and evaluation expenditure

(a) PRE-LICENCE EXPENDITURE

Any expenditure incurred relating to exploration and evaluation or similar activities prior to
obtamning a field exploration or development licence (or similar rights) are expensed as
icurred

(b) LICENCE COSTS

The cost of acquinng an exploration/development licence (or similar nghts) are capitalised
and classified as an intangible asset Incidental costs relating to the acquisition of the licence
are capitahised as part of the cost of acquisition

(c) OTHER EXPENDITURE

Geological and geophysical costs and the cost of dnilling exploratory wells that find proven
reserves are capitalised as intangibles The costs of dnlling exploratory wells that do not find
proven reserves are expensed to profit or loss All capitalised costs are subject to a
commercial, technological and management review each year to confirm the continued
ntention to develop and extract value from the discovery When thus 1s no longer the case, the
capitalised costs are wrntten off to profit or loss

When proven reserves have been identified and development has been approved, the capitahised
exploration and evaluation costs are tested for impairment and then transferred to o1l and gas properties
or coal mining assets as appropnate within property, plant and equipment

Intangible exploration and evaluation assets are not subject to amortisation

Property, plant and equipment that are consumed in developing an intangible exploration and
evaluation asset are subject to depreciation over their useful economic lives The depreciation amount
reflecting that consumption will be capitalised as part of the cost of developmg the intangible
exploration and evaluation asset
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment also includes land and buildings, plant, equipment, vehicles and office
equipment Property, plant and equipment 13 recorded at cost which includes expenditure that 1s
directly atinbutable to the acquisition of the 1tems and depreciated over 1its useful economic hife

STRIPPING COSTS

Stripping costs incurred before starting surface coal miming 1n a new deposit are capitalised n property,
plant and equipment and depreciated during the useful life of the deposit Stnipping costs incurred after
commencement of surface coal mining are classified into cost of coal produced during the reporting
peniod

DEPRECIATION

O1l and gas properties and mining assets are depreciated on a unit-of-production basis over the
estimated reserves For those assets whose useful life 15 shorter than the lifetime of the related field a
straight-line method 1s apphied

Land 1s not depreciated Buldings and operating base facilities are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives ranging from five to fifty-five years

Property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated on a straight-hne basis over the estimated useful lives of
four to twenty years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted 1f appropnate, at each reporting
date.

The gam or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determmed as the difference between
the sales proceeds (1f any) and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised 1 profit or loss

MAJOR MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS

Expenditure on major maintenance refits or repairs compnses the cost of replacement assets or parts of
assets, mspection costs and overhaul costs Where an asset or part of an asset that was separately
depreciated and 1s now wntten off 1s replaced and it 1s probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group, the expenditure 1s capitalised Where part of the asset
was not separately considered as a component, the replacement value 1s used to estimate the carrying
amount of the replaced assets which 1s immediately wntten off All other maintenance costs are
expensed as incurred

GOODWILL

Goodwill on the acquisition of subsidiartes and joint ventures 1s separately disclosed Goodwill on the
acqusition of associates 1s included 1n the mvestment 1n associates

Goodwill 1 recogmsed as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Impairment exists
when the carrying value of the asset or group of assets exceeds 1ts recoverable amount The recoverable
amount 15 estimated as the higher of its value in use and net realisable value Any impairment 1s
recogmsed immediately in profit or loss and 1s not subsequently reversed
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash generaung umits (which are normally the relevant o1l fields) for the
purpose of impairment testing

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the attributable amount of goodwilt 1s included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other intangible assets include software and licences other than exploratory and development licences
Other intangibles are measured mitially at purchase cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives

IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of 1ts property, plant and equpment and
intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any ind:cation that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated 1n order to determune
the extent of the impaurment loss (af any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
mndependent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs An intangible asset with an indefimte useful hfe 1s tested for impawrment
annually and whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be impaired

The recoverable amount 1s the lugher of fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use In assessing value
in use, the estumated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating umt) 1s estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {cash-generating umit) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount An
imparrment loss 1s recogmsed as an expense immediately

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating umt)
18 mncreased to the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrymg amount that would have been determuned had no impawrment loss been
recogmised for the asset (cash-generating umt) in prior years A reversal of an impawrment loss 18
recognmsed as mcome immediately

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event which 1t 15
probable will result 1n an outflow of economic benefits that can be rehiably estimated Where the effect
of the ime value of money 1s matenal, the provision 1s based on the present value of future outflows,
discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the nsks specific to the liabthity

Asset retirement obligations

A provision 1s made for asset retirement obligations and a corresponding amount equivalent to the
provision 1s recogmsed as part of the cost of the related property, plant and equipment (or as part of
intangible assets 1n the case of exploration and evaluation expenditure) The amount recognised 1s the
estimated cost of decommussiomng, discounted to 1ts present value Changes 1n the estimated timing of
decommssioning or decommissioning cost estimates are dealt with prospectively by recording an
adjusiment to the prowision, and a corresponding adjustment to property, plant and equipment The
unwinding of the discount on the asset retirement obligation 1s included as a finance cost
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INVENTORIES

Inventories, consisting primarily of o1l and coal together with stock, matenals and supphies used 1n
production operations, are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value Cost 15 determined on a
weighted average basis and includes expenditures incurred in acquning inventonies and bringing them
to their existing locauon and condition Net reahisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised when the Group has become a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets
Trade recervables

Trade receivables are classified as loans and receavables and are iitially recognised at fair value They
are subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method less any provision
for impairment A provision for impairment 1s made where there 1s objective evidence, (including
customers with financial difficulties or in default on payments), that amounts will not be recovered 1n
accordance with onginal terms of the agreement A provision for impairment 1s established when the
carrytng value of the recervable exceeds the present value of the future cash flows discounted using the
ongnal effective interest rate  The carrymg value of the recervable 1s reduced through the use of an
allowance account and any impatrment loss 1s recogmsed in profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and 1n hand and other short-term deposits held by the
Group with matunities of less than three months

Bank overdrafts are presented within current liabilites

Investments

Investments held by the parent company in subsidiaries are recorded at cost at the reporting date  They
are tested for impairment when there 1s objective evidence of unpairment Any umpairment losses are
recognised 1n profit or loss in the penod they occur

Financial liabilsties and equity

Financial hiabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into  An equity mstrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest 1n the
assets of the Group after deducting all of s liabilities

Bank and other borrowings

Interest-bearing bank and other loans and bank overdrafts are recorded mmtally at their fair value, net
of direct transaction costs Such instruments are subsequently camed at thewr amortised cost and

finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption, are recogmsed n profit or
loss over the term of the instrument at the effective rate of interest
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Trade payables

Trade payables are mitially recognised at far value and subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method

Equity instruments

Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at fair value on 1mual recognition net of
transaction costs

Derwvative financial imstruments

The Group’s activities expose 1t primanly to commodity price risk and interest rate risk The Group
uses o1l price hedging arrangements and interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures The
Group does not use denvative financial instruments for speculative purposes The use of any financial
denivatives 1s approved by the board of directors

Instruments quoted 1n an active market are measured at thew current bid price  For instruments that are
not quoted 1n an active market, the fair value 1s estimated using a valuation techmque Techmques that
are used by the Group include compansons to0 recent market transactions or reference to other
instruments which are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option prnicing
models Inputs to such techmques rely on market inputs where such information 1s readily
available Where such information 1s not available entity-specific inputs are used

None of the denvative financial instruments used by the Group qualify for hedge accounting and any
changes 1n thear fair value are recognised 1n profit or loss as they anse

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial penod of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, unul such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on quahfying assets 15 deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
caputahsation Capitahisation of borrowing costs 15 suspended during extended periods in which active
development 1s interrupted All other borrowing costs are recogmsed 1n profit or loss 1n the period
which they are incurred

LEASES

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease Rental mcome from operating leases 1s recogmsed on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operatmg lease are also spread on a straight line basis over the lease term

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from the sale of crude o1l 1s recogrused when the sigrficant nisks and rewards of ownershup have
been transferred, which 1s when title passes to the customer
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration recerved or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods provided in the normal course of busmess net of discount, custom duties
and sale taxes

Revenues from sales of coal are recognised at the point of transfer of nsks, when the coal i1s delivered
to the buyer, the buyer accepts the coal and the Group 15 reasonably certain that the respective accounts
recervable will be received

Revenue derived from the provision of services 18 recogmsed m the period duning which such services
were provided Where a contract is not fully completed at the year end, revenue 1s recognised according
to the percentage of the project completed during the yecar

Interest imcome 1s accrued on a time-apportioned basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected hife of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and deferred tax expense

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from the profit
that 15 reported 1n the profit or loss because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible 1n other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s
liability for current tax 1s calculated by using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and habilities 1n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method

Deferred tax liabilities are recogmsed for 2l taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recogmsed to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available agamst which
deductible temporary differences can be utiised Such assets and liabilities are not recogmsed 1f the
temporary difference anses from the imtal recogmtion of goodwill or from the mtial recognrtion
(other than 1 a business combination) of other assets and habihities 1n a transaction which affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recogmised for taxable temporary differences ansmg on mvestments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse i the foreseeable future

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences ansing on acquisition that are categonsed as
Business Combinations

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the peniod when the asset 1s
realised or the Liability 1s settled based upon tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to profit or loss, except when 1t relates to
riems credited or charped directly to equity, m which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt withun equity

In certam junsdictrons 1n which the Group operates under production sharing agreements with the local
State oil company, the responsibility for the payment of tax rests wath the State o1l company
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contnbution plans where the Group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising 1n a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan

NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the tower of thewr
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and presented separately in the Statement of Financial
Position from other assets and habilities

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use This condition 1s regarded as
met only when the sale ts highly probable, the asset {(or disposal group) 1s available for immediate sale
n 1ts present condition, management are commutted to the sale and expect the asset (or disposal group)
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

IFRS'S ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following relevant standards and interpretations were 1n 1ssue at the reporting date but are not yet
effecive Management do not anticipate that these will have a significant impact on the financial
statements

IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’ The amendments to IFRS 7 are effecuve for

(amended) annual periods beginming from 1 January 2013 and cover an offsetting of Financial
Assets and Finang¢ial Liabilitties The two main categories of disclosures required by
IFRS 7 are information about the sigmificance of financial instruments and
information about the nature and extent of nsks ansing from financial instruments

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015) The standard applies a consistent approach to classifying financial assets
and replaces the numerous categonies of financial assets in 1AS 39, each of which
had its own classification cnitena It also results in one impairment method,
replacing the numerous impairment methods 1n [AS 39 that anse from the different
classtfication categories *

IFRS 13 ‘Farr Value Measurement’ (effective for annual periods beginmng on or after |
January 2013) The new standard provides guidance on measurement of fair value
for financial reporting purposes where IFRSs require or permut farr value
measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements

IAS | ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or

(amended) after 1 July 2012 and early adoption 1s permitted} The amendment requires that an
entity presents separately items of other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future from those that will never be reclassified to
profit or loss Additionally, the amendment changes the title of the statement of
comprehensive income to statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income However, the use of other titles is permutted

*Not yet endorsed by the EU
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenernce and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are beheved to be reasonable under the
circumstances

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and
assumptions that have a sigmificant nsk of causing a matenial adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Directors review the facts and cucumstances associated with all matenal potential known
habilities as at the balance sheet date to assess the likelthood of an actual liability arising on the group
and to quant:fy any potential liability Details of commitments and contingent liabilities are 1n note 30

IMPAIRMENT

The Directors consider the facts and circumstances surrounding its exploration and evaluation
expenditure, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there 15 any
mdication of impamrment

In assessing the recoverable amount of a cash-generating umt an estimate of the umt’s value in use
must be made Value 1n use 18 based on the cash flows expected to be generated by the projected oil,
gas and coal production profiles up to the earlier of the expected dates of cessation of production or the
expected licence terminatton date of each producng field

As each producing field has specific charactenstics and economic circumstances, the cash flows of the
fields are computed using appropriate individual economic models and key assumptions agreed by
management These cash flows are then discounted to their present value using an appropnate discount
rate

Estimates of o1l production volumes have regard to reports 1ssued by third party reservoir engineers

Other key assumptions used in the value 1n use calculations are as follows

2012 2011
Long term o1l prices (net world o1l price US$/Bbi) $86-102 $86-106
Discount rate for o1l and gas fair value 1n use calculation 3% 8%
Discount rate for coal fair value m use calculation 18% 15 6%
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (contunued)
CARRYING VALUE OF OIL, GAS AND COAL ASSETS

Oil and gas properties and coal assets are depreciated using the unit-of-production (*UOP’) method
over proven developed and undeveloped mineral reserves The calculation of the UOP rate of
amortisation could be impacted to the extent that actual production i the future is different from
current forecast production based on proved reserves This would generally result from signuficant
changes 1n any of the factors or assumptions used in estmating reserves

These factors could include

. Changes n proven reserves,

. the effect on proven reserves of differences between actual commodity prices and
commodity price assumptions,

. unforeseen operational 1ssues

The carrying value of o1l, gas and coal assets 1s a significant area of management estimation and
Jjudgement

SITE RESTORATION AND ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Directors review the provisions at each reporting date, and adjust them to reflect the current best
estimate 1n accordance with IFRIC 1 ‘Changes 1n Existing Decommussiomng, Restoration and Simular
Liabilities’ The risks and uncertainties that inevitably swrround many events and circumstances are
taken 1nto account in reaching the best estimate of an obligation Considerable judgement 1s required n
forecasting the future obligations Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an
obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there 1s sufficient objective evidence that
they will occur

Estimates of the amounts of provisions recogmsed are based on current legal and constructive
requirements, technology and price levels Because actual outflows can differ from estimates due to
changes 1n laws, regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place
many years in the future, the carrying amount of provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to take
account of such change

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group's normal operating, imnvesting and financing activities expose 1t 1o a vanety of financial
risks market nisk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and commodity price risk), credit nsk and
liquidity nsk The Group has 1n place risk management policies that seek to himit the adverse effects
of commodity price nsk and interest rate nsk

LIQUIDITY RISK

In order to manage hiquidity risk 1t 1s the Group's policy to maimntain commutted facilities to ensure
sufficient available surplus cash resources

The Group closely monitors us access to bank and other credit facilities in companisen to its
outstanding commitments on a regular basis through the use of cash flow forecasts to ensure that 1t has
sufficient funds to meet the obhigations of the Group as they fall due
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Maturity Analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s financial habilities into matunty groupmngs based on amounts
outstanding at the balance sheet date up to the contractual matunity date

Group 2012 Between
Less than 6 months  Between 1 Over
6 months and 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
$°000 $000 $’000 $°000 $°000
Trade and other payables 92,193 - - - 92,193
Borrowings 419,495 177,294 364,813 18,542 980,144
Total 511,688 177,294 364,813 18,542 1,072,337
Group 2011 (restated) Between
Less than 6 months Between 1 Over
6 months  and 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
$’000 $°000 $°000 5’000 $7000
Trade and other payables 94,062 3,873 514 - 98,449
Borrowings 75,461 48,442 504,521 323,632 952,056
Total 169,523 52,315 505,035 323,632 1,050,505
Company 2012 Between
Less than 6 months  Between 1 Over
6 months  and 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $’000
Trade and other payables 604 - - - 604
Total 604 - . - 604
Company 2011 Between
Less than 6 months  Between 1 Over
6 months  and | year to 5 years 5 years Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 £°000
Trade and other payables 11,111 - - - 11,111

Total 11,111 - - - 11,111
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4

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group operates in several markets across the world and 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from currency exposures, in particular with respect to the Azerbayam Manat (*AZN’), the Russian
Ruble (‘RUR’) and the Kazakhstan Tenge (‘KZT")

The sensitivity to foreign exchange rates relates only to assets and liabilities denominated 1n a
currency other than US$ Management have considered the historic volatility in exchange rates and
applied judgement in determiming a reasonably possible change in exchange rates The impact of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates on profit or loss and on equity, based on the
assumptions set out below are as follows

Restated
2012 2011
$°000 $°000
Impact on equity
10% increase in AZN fx rate aganst US$ (958) (1,958)
10% decrease 1n AZN fx rate against US$ 958 1,958
10% increase in RUR fx rate against US$ 4,241 6,989
10% decrease in RUR fx rate against US§ (4,241) (6,989)
10% mcrease in KZT fx rate against US$ 3,717 -
10% decrease m KZT fx rate against US$ 3,717 -
Impact on profit or loss
10% increase m RUR fx rate apainst US$ (1,585) (1,314)
10% decrease in RUR fx rate against US$ 1,585 1,314
10% increase n KZT fx rate against US$ 3,717) -
10% decrease in KZT fx rate against US$ 3,717 -

There would be a mimimal 1mpact on profit or loss of a 10% change 1n the AZN exchange rate, so 1t
has not been quantified above

CREDIT RISK

Credit sk predominantly arises from loans and other receivables, trade receivables and cash and cash
equivalents

The Group's credit nsk associated with crude o1l and refined o1l products and coal activities 1s with
counterparties 1n related o1l and coal industries There 1s no formal rating for many of the Group’s
customers mn Russia The Group only trades with reputable and recogmsed third parties Management
performs vartous evaluations of its customers before transacting and regularly monstors exposures and
concentrations of credit nsk 1n order to manage 1t The Group does not hold collateral as secunty 1n
respect of any trade receivable

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit rnisk, gross of any collateral held, relating to 1its financial
assets 1s equivalent to their carrying value as disclosed below  All financial assets have a fair value
which 1s not matenially different from their carrying value
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FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)

Restated

Group Group Company Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

Maximum exposure to credit nsk $’000 $'000 $'000 $°000

Trade and other receivables 102,899 111,632 18 22
Trade and other loan receivables from

related parties 17,057 6,002 11,066 -

Cash and cash equivalents 19,839 27,837 431 9,839

139,795 145,471 11,515 9,861

The Group or the Company does not have any trade and other receivables that are past due at the
reporting date but have not been provided for impairment

The provision for credit losses of balances receivable from customers 1s based on a review of balances
determined to be impaired at the reporting date In deterrmiming whether amounts due are impaired,
management considered quantitative factors such as the penod of tume past due as well as qualitative
factors mncluding changes 1n business environment and changes to the credit worthiness of
counterparties

Provision for credit losses by class 1s as follows

Restated
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Impairment of trade and other receivables 409 1,016 - -
Impairment of related party receivables 13,383 2,883 - -
Provision for credit losses 13,792 3,809 - -

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group holds a denivative financial instrument to manage nterest rate nsk on floating rate bank
borrowings Details of this instrument can be found 1n note 22

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change 1n mnterest rates, with
all other vanables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax through the impact on floating rate
borrowings and interest rate swaps
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4 FINANCIAL RISK FACTOQRS (continued)

Increase/(decrease) in interest rates
0 5% 1increase
0 5% decrease

Restated

Effect on profit  Effect on profit
and equity and equity
2012 2011

$'000 %7000
(17 (235)

117 235

The Group's interest rate exposure anses mamly from its interest bearing borrowings The Group has
mostly fixed rate loans payable to reduce exposure to interest rate cash flow nsk

The Group regularly reviews its funding arrangements to ensure they are competitive with the

marketplace

The table below shows the Group’s non-denvative financial assets and habilities split by those beanng
fixed and floating rates and those that are non-interest bearing

ASSETS
Group

2012

Trade and other recervables
Trade recervable from related parties
Cash and cash equivalents

2011 Restated

Trade and other receivables
Other loans receivable from related parties
Cash and cash equivalents

Fixed
rate

$°000

Floaung
rate
$°000

Floating
rate
$’000

Non-interest
bearing
$'000

102,899
17,057
19,839

139,795

Non-1interest
Beanng
$°000
111,632

26,799

138,431

Total
$7000

102,899
17,057
19,839

139,795

Total
$°000

111,632
6,002
27,837

145,471
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FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)

Company
2012

Trade and other receivables

Other loans recervable from related parties

Cash and cash equivalents

2011

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivatents

LIABILITIES
Group

2012

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

2011 Restated

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Fixed
rate
$°000

Fixed
rate
$°000

Fixed rate
$°000

956,667

956,667

Fixed rate
$°000

905,093

905,093

Floating Non-interest
rate bearing Total
$:000 $°000 3000
- 18 18
- 11,066 11,066
- 431 431
- 11,515 11,515
Floating Non-interest
rate Bearing Total
$°000 $°000 $°000
- 22 22
- 9,839 9,839
- 9,861 9,861
Floating Non-interest
rate Bearing Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
- 92,193 92,193
23,477 - 980,144
23,477 92,193 1,072,337
Floating Non-interest
rate bearing Total
$°000 $’000 $'000
- 98,449 98,449
46,962 - 952,055
46,962 98,449 1,050,504

No nterest was charged on trade and other payables during 2012 or 2011

In 2012, the Company’s irade and other payables were $604,000 (2011

mterest bearing

$11,111,000) and were non-
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FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s main objective when managing capatal 1s to protect returns to shareholders by ensunng the
Group wili continue to trade n the foreseeable future The Group also aims to maximise its capital

structure of debt and equity so as to mimimse 1ts cost of capital

The Group manages 1ts capital with regard to the nsks inherent in the business and the sector within
which it operates by monitoring 1ts gearing ratio on a regular basis

The Group considers its capital to include share capital, contnbuted capital, translation reserve,
retained earnings and net debt as noted below

Net debt includes short and long-term borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents

Restated

2012 2011

$7000 $°000

Total debt 980,114 952,055
Less cash and cash equivalents {19,839) (27,837)

Net debt 960,275 924,218

Total equity (2,821) (18,465)

The Group does not have any externally imposed capital requirements
COMMODITY PRICE RISK

Commodity price risk 1s the nsk that market prices for commodities will move adversely thereby
potentially reducing expected margins

A significant peried of lower o1l or coal prices would lead to a review for impairment of the Group's
oil, gas and coal properties Such a review could result in a charge for inpairment that could have a
sigmficant effect on the Group's results as well as requunng the Group to make changes to 1ts capital
expenditure plans

Given the strong linkage 1in world energy markets to the USS$, there 15 a significant impact on o1l and
gas prices A weakening of the US$ aganst other currencies would therefore be expected to increase
the USS$ price of o1l and gas

The Group entered mto an o1l prnice instrument as detailed in note 22

The table below summarises the impact on profit before tax for changes in commodity prices

Restated

Effect on profit Effect on profit

and equity and equity

2012 2011

3000 $°000

Increase/(decrease) in crude ol prices

10% 1ncrease 45914 35,383

10% decrease (45,914) (35,383)
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5 REVENUE

Revenue for the year was derived from the following activities

Sale of 01l and gas
Revenue from c¢oal sales
Other revenue

6 PROFIT/(1.LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

The following items have been charged in arnving at profiv(loss)

before taxation

Amounts payable to Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP and their associates in

respect of both audit and non-audit services

Audit services

- Statutory audit of parent and consolidated accounts

- Auditing of the accounts of subsidianes of the Group pursuant to
legislation (1ncluding that of countries and ternitories outside
Great Britain)

- Other audu services supplied pursuant to such legislation

Taxation services

Operating lease rentals - land and buildings

7 EMPLOYEE COSTS

2012
$°000

342,085
155,391
12,504

509,980

2012
$°000

307

664
420
82

4,209

Restated
2011
$°000

353,835
157,805
8,688

520,328

Restated
2011
$°000

249

671
480
95

3,754

The table below sets out details of the Group's employment costs, mcluding key management and

Dhrectors

Wages and salaries
Social secunty costs
Pension costs - defined contrnibution plans

The average monthly number of employees dunng the year
was made up as follows

Techmical and operations
Sales and marketing
Management and admimstration

2012
$°000

64,128
11,273
3,061

78,462

4,708
15
466

5,189

20t1
$°000

61,114
11,886
2,660

75,660

4,764
28
376

5,168
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7

EMPLOYEE COSTS (continued)

2012
KEY MANAGEMENT $'000
The table below sets out details of the emoluments of the Group's
key management including Directors
Short term benefits 2,311
Post employment benefits 68
2,379
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
The table below sets out details of the emoluments of the Company's 2012
Durectors $°000
Darectors' emoluments 1n respect of qualifying services 913
Company contributions to personal pension schemes 68
981
The emoluments of the highest paid Director were as follows
Emoluments in respect of qualifying services 334
Company contributions to personal penston schemes 24
358

There are 3 directors 1n defined contribution personal pension schemes (2011 3)

INTEREST AND OTHER INCOME

2012

$°000

Interest on bank deposits -
Other interest 343
Rental income 500
Other mcome 16,153
16,996

2011
$000

2,230
67

2,297

2011
$7000

967
67

1,034

356
24

380

Restated
2011
$°000

2
1,259
338
6,245

7,844

The amount of other income 1 2011 includes an amount of $5,096,200 bemg the Group’s share of
commussion m connection with the hiquidation of a former Group company and a gan on a “bargan”

purchase of $992,000 of Razrez Sayano-Partizansky OOO (note 38)

The amount of other income m 2012 mncludes an amount of $15,000,000 bemng a non-refundable

prepayment related to a non-realised sale-purchase offer from a potential buyer
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9

10

FINANCE COSTS

Interesi on bank loans and overdrafis

Interest on other loans

Unwinding of discount 1n respect of provisions (see note 21)
Losses arising from financial instruments held at fair value through
profit and loss (see note 22)

TAXATION

Analysis of (credit) / charge for the year
Current tax — overseas

Tax on remutted earnings

Deferred tax credit (see note 24)

Tax (credit) / charge for the year

The tax for the year 1s less than the statutory rate of corporation tax
n the UK The differences are explaned below

Profit before tax

Profit before tax multiplied by the standard UK Corporation tax
rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%)

Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Deferred tax asset not recogmsed

Overseas losses unrehieved

Profits ansing 1in production shanng agreements
Profit on sale of subsidiary

Tax on remitted earnings

Dhfference 1n overseas tax rates

Joint venture profits

Total taxation (credit) / charge

2012
$’000

10,763
65,075
1,327

(114)

77,051

2012
$°000

1,601
169
(6,283)

(4,423)

2012
$7000

19,461

4,767

437
(2,680)
9,471
(1,694)

169
271
(15,164)

(4,423)

Restated
2011
$°000

7,730
59,281
1,147
266

68,424

Restated
2011
$'000

3,596
583
(646)

3,533

Restated
2011
$°000

111,487

29,544

223
1,384
4,020

(22,636)

(8,378)
583
(1,157)

3,533
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11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Exploration
Group and
evaluation
assets Software
$000 $'000
COST
At | January 2011 restated - 1,934
Additions 33,929 351
Acquired through business combinations (see note 38) - 21
Disposal of subsidianes - (5)
Exchange differences (126) -
At 1 January 2012 restated 33,803 2,351
Additions 10,617 100
Exchange differences (1,047) -
At 31 December 2012 43373 2,451
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2011 - 1,343
Charge for the year - 175
Exchange differences - ®
At | January 2012 - 1,512
Charge for the year - 158
Exchange differences - 8
At 31 December 2012 - 1,678
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2012 43,373 773
At 31 December 2011 - restated 33,803 839
At | January 2011 - restated - 641

Goodwill
$'000

5,192

5,192

5,192

Total
$'000

7,176
34,280
21

(5)
(126}

41,346
10,717
(1,047)

51,016

5,192

5,192

6,535
175
(©

6,704
158

5,192

6,870

44,146

34,642

641
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12

13

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {continued)

In accordance with the provisions of the production sharing agreements (*PSA’) in Azerbayjan, title to
fixed and moveable assets will be transferred to the State 0:1l company at the earher of the end of the
calendar quarter following the date when all costs incurred by the operating companies are recovered
(*Zero Balance Date’) or the termunation of the relevant PSA However, the operating companies will
be entitled to continue to use such fixed and moveable assets without charge, notwithstanding the
transfer of title Zero Balance Date has not been reached under any of the PSAs at the date of approval
of these financial statements

Plant and Motor
Company machinery vehicles Total
$°000 $°000 $°000
COST
At 1 January 2011 51l 1,107 1,618
Additions 20 131 151
Disposals ey (159) (160)
At 1 January 2012 530 1,079 1,609
Additions 32 - 32
Disposals (118) (79 (197
At 31 December 2012 444 1,000 1,444
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2011 307 598 905
Charge for the year 85 173 258
Disposals (1) (86) (87
At 1 January 2012 39 685 1,076
Charge for the year 38 94 132
Disposals 27 (38) (65)
At 31 December 2012 402 741 1,143
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2012 42 259 301
At 31 December 2011 139 394 533
At | January 2011 204 509 713
NON-CURRENT LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Restated
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Group
Advances for property, plant and equipment 25,476 3,538
25,476 3,538

—_— —_—
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14

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Company

At ] January 2011
Additions

At 31 December 2011
Additions

At 31 December 2012

The Group's subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2012 are hsted below

Global Energy Cyprus Limited

GEA Holdings Limted

Global Energy Azerbayjan

Limited

Global Energy Azerbayjan

Management Limited

Kura Valley Holding Company
Karasu Petroleurn Company

Karasu Development Company

Repleton Enterprises Limuted

Azen O11 Company

Shirvan Petroleum Limited
Shirvan Investments Limited
Absheron Petroleum Limited
Apsheron Investments Limuted
Neftechala Petroleum Limited

Neftechala Investments Limited

Barlen Holdings Linuted

Krasnoyarskkraiugol CAO

Sibtrans-service Q0O
Agrokolos 000

Razrez Sayano-Partizansky

000

Country of
Incorporation

Cyprus

British Virgin
Islands

Bntish Virgin
Islands

Bntish Virgin
Islands

Cayman Islands

Cayman Islands

Cayman Islands
Cyprus

Netherlands

Brnitish Virgin
Islands
Brntish Virgin
Islands
Bntish Virgin
Islands
British Virgin
Islands
British Virgin'
Islands
Bntish Virgin
Islands
Cyprus

Russian Federation Ordinary

Russian Federanon Ordinary
Russian Federation Ordinary
Russian Federation Ordinary

Class of share Proportion

capital held  held by
Group
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordimnary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 100%
99 89%
99 89%
99 89%
99 89%

$°000

88,611
12

88,623
2,024

90,647

Nature of business

Holding company

Holding company of o1l
companies operating n
Azerbaijan

Intermediate holding
company

Management company

Intermediate holding
company

Intermediate holding
company

(1l company

Intermediate holding
company
Intermediate holding
company
Intermediate holding
company
Intermediate holding
company
Intermed:iate holding
company
Intermediate holding
company
Intermediate holding
company
Intermediate holding
company
Intermediate holding
company

Coal company
Transport company
Dormant

Coal company
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15

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (continued)

Country of Class of share Proportion Nature of business
incorporation capital held  held by
Group
Global Energy Kazakhstan Umnited Kingdom  Ordinary 100%  Dormant
Limited
Riocono Ventures Limited Cyprus Ordinary 100%  Dormant
GCM Global Energy Slavkalt  Unuted Kingdom  Ordinary 100%  Intermediate holding
Limited company
GCM Global Energy Slavkah  Cyprus Ordinary 100%  Intermediate holding
(Cyprus) Limited company
Slavkali FLLC Belarus Ordinary 100%  Potage company
Trovidor Enterpnises Limited ~ Cyprus Ordinary 90% [ntermediate holding
company

All subsidiary undertakings have been consolidated 1n the Group financial statements The proportion
of voting nghts 1n the subsidiary undertakings held directly by the Group does not differ from the
proportion of ordinary shares held

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

On 20 October 2010, GCM Global Energy Plc entered into a joint venture agreement with a thurd party
to use Precious Oil Products Investments BV (“POPI”) to acquire JSC Caspry Neft (“CaspiNeft”)
CaspiNeft held subsoil use rights in respect of the Atrankol o1l and gas field located 1n the Republic of
Kazakhstan One of GCM’s key obligations under the joint venture agreement was to secure a contract
permitting production of petroleum from the Jurassic reserve within the Airankol field The majonty
of the oil reserves within the Airankol field are within the Jurassic region On 27 May 2011, CaspiNeft
signed an addendum to 1ts production contract which allowing production from the Jurassic reserve and
thus significantly enhancing the value of CaspiNeft

On 2 November 2011, Trovidor Enterprises Limited, a 90% owned subsidiary of GCM Global Energy
Ple, acquired 50% of the share capital in POPI, a dormant company, for $12,000 and on 3 May 2012,
POPI completed the acquisittion of 100% of the issued share capital of CaspiNeft, for cash
constderation of $52m

GCM exercised significant influence over CaspilNeft prior to the completion of the legal acquisition by
POPI i May 2012, as demonstrated by the Jurassic reserve addendum and the changes 1n local
management Management concluded that as legal ownership had not occurred by 31 December 2011,
1t was not appropriate to incorporate a share of joint venture income ansing from CaspiNeft in the 2011
financial statements

In the 2012 financial statements, CaspiNeft, together POPI, have been equity accounted for as a joint
venture In accordance with [FRS, Trovidor’s 50% share of the joint venture has been recogmsed from
date of GCM exercising significant mfluence over CaspiNeft, which 1s earher than the date of legal
acquisition
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16

17

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE (continued)

The Group accounts for 1ts interest 1n the joint venture by the equity accounting method, as more fully
explained 1n the Accounting Policies section of these financial statements The following amounts are

included n the Group’s financial statements in respect of the joint venture

Ininal investment in 50% of share capital of Precious Oil Products

Investments B V

Share of results of joint ventures accounted for using the equaty

method
Drividends received from joint venture

Investments in joint venture as of 31 December 2012

INVENTORIES

Group

Coal
Crude o1l
Spare parts and other matenals

2012
$r000

12

61,394
(5,989)

55,917

2012
$7000
11,027

1,102
22,848

34,977

2011
5000

12

12

Restated
2011
$°000

3,408
991
22,918

27,317

Dunng the year inventories amounting to $8,053,000 (2011 $11,237,000) were included 1o production
costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade recervables

Other recervables

Prepayments

Other tax prepayments

Amounts owed by group companies
Loans recervable from related parties

Group
2012
$'000

76,881
26,020
8,666
2,526

17,057

131,150

Restated
Group
2011
$°000

86,300
25,332
9,624
2,805

6,002

130,063

_—

Company Company
2012 2011
$°000 $°000

17 21

48 1

498 534

76 107

6 1,040

645 1,703
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group
2012
$ 000

Cash at bank and on hand 19,839

Restated
Group
2011
$°000

27,837

The above cash and cash equivalents were denominated as follows

Restated
Group Group
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
US doliar 14,941 22,602
Roubles 3,403 3,880
Sterling 352 594
Euro 52 14
Azerbajjan Manat 1,029 656
Belarus Roubles 61 %0
Swiss Francs 1 1
19,839 27,837
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Restated
Group Group
2012 2011
$°000 $°000
Trade payables 76,913 75,655
Accruals and deferred income 5,635 5,801
Other payables 9,643 16,993
Social secunty and other taxation 4,203 4,178
Amounts owed to group compames - -
96,394 102,627
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Group Current  Non-current
2012 2012
$°000 3000
Bank loans 40,155 93,160
Non-bank borrowings 556,634 260,195
596,789 383,355

Company Company

2012 2011
$:000 $’000
431 9,839
Company Company

2012 2011
$'000 $°000

75 9,202

1 40

352 594

2 2

1 1

431 9,339
Company Company
2012 2011
$°000 $’000
591 611

12 10,000

149 235

1 500

753 11,346
Restated Restated
Current  Non-current
2011 2011
$°000 $000
51,934 67,673
71,969 760,480
123,903 828,153
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

The werghted average interest rates paid were

2012 2011
%o %

Bank loans 9
Non-bank borrowings 9

o o

$23m (2011 $47m) of the bank loans are denomunated in US$ amounts drawn under a revolving
facility agreement was due to expire on 30 December 2013 Interest 1s charged on thus facility at 5%
above LIBOR (or if lhugher a rate computed having regard to the rate charged by certain reference
banks) As more fully descnbed in note 23, the Group has partially hedged its exposure to floating
interest rates by means of an iiterest rate swap The facility reduces by $24m per annum until expiry

The secunty for this bank loan includes (a) a fixed charge over the shares of GEA Holdings Limuted
and certain of its subsidianes, (b) a first pnonty pledge over the o1l off-take arrangements 1n respect of
three of production sharing agreements 1in Azerbaijan and (c) a guarantee from the Company

As disclosed 1n note 32, this bank loan facility was re-financed and extended to 2016 The secunty for
the bank loan was amended to include a further production-sharing agreement in Azerbayan and the
removal of the parent company guarantee

$110m (2011 $73m) of the bank loans are denomunated in RUR at fixed interest rates ranging from
8 3% to 10 98% (2011 4 6% to 12 3%) and secured against certain of the Group’s assets As discussed
in note 30, subsequent to the year end there was a breach of a bank loan covenant and the related loans
of $95m are now repayable on demand

The non-bank borrowings are mainly denominated 1n US$, are all unsecured fixed rate borrowings and
have matunty dates ranging between 2013 and 2023 The directors consider that the fair value of the
Group’s bank loans and non-bank borrowings at the yearend were not sigmficantly different to their
carrying values

PROVISIONS
Asset Employee
Site restoration retirement retirement
obligations obligations obligations Total

$’000 $°000 $7000 $°000

At 1 January 2012 - restated 2,649 12,793 917 16,359
Additional provision in the year 48 2,172 44 2,264
Utilisation of provision - - (38) (38)
Unwinding of discount 230 1,024 73 1,327
Exchange difference 161 - - 161

At 31 December 2012 3,088 15,989 996 20,073

The employee retirement obligattons relates to the obligation, but only 1n certain circumstances, of an
overseas subsidiary to pay lump sum amounts to employees on retirement The provision 1s increased
each year by the cost attributable to employee services

The asset retrement obligations anse at the end of o1l production shanng agreements which have
termunation dates ranging from 2026 to 2036 and the site restoration obligations anse when coal
deposits are fully extracted which 1s expected to be between 2037 and 2062 It 1s anticipated that the
employee retrement obligations will be ualised 1n the penod up to 2030
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Interest rate swap

The Group has utilised an interest rate swap i 2011 and 2012 to manage 1ts exposure to nterest rate
movements on 1ts bank borrowings A contract with a quarterly reducing notional of $75m value fixes
interest payments at a rate of 2 05% for the period up unul 31 December 2013

This interest rate swap has not been designated as an effective cash flow hedge Changes 1 the fair
value of the interest rate swap are recognised 1n profit or loss

The Group settled the net amount of $306,792 and $694,688 to the bank favour dunng the year ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 respectively

At 31 December 2012, the farr value of the denvative was a current hability of $162,033 (2011
$460,572)
Commodity price cap and collar

The Group used o1l commodity mnstruments (‘cap and collar’) in 2011 up to 30 June 2011 and 1n 2012
up to 30 Apnl 2013, 31 July 2013, 31 October 2013 and 31 December 2013 n order to manage 1ts
exposure to o1l price movements

In 2011 the contract was for a nominal number of barrels of 1,061,400 fixing the sales price if the o1l
price moved above £125 or below $85 per barrel

In 2012 the 4 contacts were for a normnal number between 198,250 to 588,250 barrels fixing the sales
price if the o1l price moved above £160 or below $90 per barrel

At 31 December 2012, the farr value of the denvauve was a current Lhiability of $224,640 (2011
$40,158)

FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

The fair value hierarchy

Fair values have been measured at the end of the reporting period as follows -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
‘Quoted ‘Observable ‘Unobservable
prices’ mputs’ mputs’ Total
$000 $000 $’000 $°000
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Fair value through profit and loss
Denvative financial instruments
At 31 December 2011 - 501 - 501
At 31 December 2012 - 386 - 386
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FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES (continued)

Financial assets and habihities measured at fair value are disclosed using a fair value huerarchy that

reflects the significance of the inputs used 1n making the fair value measurements, as follows -

* Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in acuve markets for identical asset or habilities (“quoted

prices’),

* Level 2 — Inputs (other than quoted prices 1n active markets for identical assets or liabilities) that

are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or hablity (‘observable inputs’), or

®  Level 3 - Inputs that are not based on observable market data (‘unobservable inputs’)

Classification within the hierarchy 1s based on the lowest level input that 1s sigruficant to the fair value

measurement 1n 1ts enturety

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY/(ASSET)

2012 2011

$000 $'000
Deferred tax Liabilities
- amounts due to be settled after 12 months 15,061 18,112
Deferred tax assets
- amounts due to be recovered after 12 months (3,382) (1,063)
Net position at 31 December 11,679 17,049
The movement 1n the year mn the Group’s net deferred tax position was as follows

2012 2011

$°000 $°000
At 1 January 17,049 8,624
Credit to income for the year (6,283) (646)
On acquisition - 10,363
Translation difference 913 (1,292)
At 31 December 11,679 17,049

The following are the major deferred tax habilities and assets recogmsed by the group and the

movements thereon durning the year

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) Valuation of
properties and
wntangibles Other
$'000 $°000
At | January 2011 9,530 (906)
On acquisition 10,709 (346)
Translation difference (1,302) 10
Charge/(credit) to profit and loss (1,022) 376
At 1 January 2012 17,915 (866)
Translation difference 804 109
(Credit)/charge to profit and loss (3,922) (2,361)
At 31 December 2012 14,797 (3,118)

Total
5’000
8,624
10,363
(1,292)
(646)

17,049
013
(6,283)

11,679
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY/(ASSET) (continued)

At the year end, the Company and the Group has unused UK tax losses of $25m (2011 $35m)
available for offset against future UK taxable profits A deferred tax asset has not been recognised 1n
respect of such losses where the iming of the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits 1s uncertan

SHARE CAPITAL

Number £7000 $°000
Authonised at 31 December 2011 and
31 December 2012

Ordinary share of £1 each 18,500,000 18,500 28,817
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid

Total 1ssued at 31 December 2011 and

31 December 2012 16,748,812 16,749 29312

RESERVES

Translation reserve
The translation reserve represents the exchange gains and losses that have arisen on the retranslation of
overseas operations

Accumulated deficu
The accumulated deficit represents the cumulative profit and loss

Contributed capital
This represents the fair value of the net assets of entities given to the Group by related parties under
common control with the Company

Non-controlling interest

This represents the share of net assets attnbutable to munonty shareholders i Global Energy
Azerbayan Limited, Krasnoyarskkraiugol OAO and Trovidor Enterpnises Limited As at 31 December
2011 non-controlling interest also includes minonty shareholders in Razrez Sayano-Partizansky O0O,
whose interest was acquured 1n 2012 (see note 38)
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Restated
Group Group
2012 2011
$°000 37000
Profit/(loss) before taxation 19,461 114,128
Adjustments for
Depletion, depreciation and
amortisation charge 78,029 80,691
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment - (24)
Profit on sale of substdianes s (36,712)
Gain on acquisition of subsidiary - (992)
Non-monetary contnbution of
consulting expenses to
mvestments of subsidiary - -
Finance cost — net 75,495 65,750
Unwinding of discount on
provisions 1,327 1,147
Impairment charge / (reversal of
impairment) 62,631 (41,411)
Change i fair value of denvatives (114) (388)
Income from joint venture (61,894) -
Wnie-off of prepayments - -
Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital 174,940 182,189
Changes 1 working capital
Inventones (7.660) (4.456)
Trade and other receivables (32,334) (59,639)
Trade and other payables 9,363 5,960
Provisions 3,714 3,113
Cash inflow/(outflow) from
operations 148,023 127,167

Company
2012
$°000

12,985
128

(14)

(598)
(3,146)

9,400

25
(10,675)

(1,250)

Company
2011
$°000

(857)

(5,672)

109
10,491

4,928
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Group as lessee:

The maximum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are in aggregate as follows

2012 2011

3000 $°000

Less than | year 2,459 2,229
1 to 2 years 1,429 1,429
2 to 5 years 4,288 4,288
Over 5 years 4,648 6,078
12,824 14,024

Operating lease comrmtment relates to rental payments on the Group’s and Company’s offices
Group as lessor:
Property rental income earned during the year was $500,000 (2011 $338,000) At the year end, the

Group had contracted with tenants, under non-cancellable leases, for the following aggregate future
minimum lease payments

2012 2011

$°000 $°000

Less than one year 470 470

Between one and five years 484 954

954 1,424

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Restated

2012 2011

$°000 $°000

Reversal of impairment of o1l and gas properties - 46,633
Impairment loss on o1l and gas properties (44,475) (5,223)

Impairment loss on mining rights (18,156) -
Impairment loss on doubtful receivables (13,383) (3,011)

(76,014) 38,399

As at 31 December 2012 the Group recognised impairment loss relating to two (2011 one) of the o1l
fields 1n Azerbayan in the amount of US $44,475,000 (2011 $5,223,000) due to reduced estimates of
the quantities of hydrocarbons

In the previous year 2011 the reversal of an impatrment loss recogmsed previously n the amount of
$46.,633,000 due to increase 1 discounted cash flows allocated to the quantity of hydrocarbons based
on the independent valuation report of o1l and gas reserves

As at 31 December 2012 the Group also recognised an impairment loss on doubtful receivables from
related parties 1n the amount of $13,383,000 (2011 $3,011,000)

As at 31 December 2012 the Group recogmsed impaument loss relating to one of the coal mines in
Russia in the amount of USD $18,156,000 (2011 $Nil) due to the increased cost of extracuion
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Production sharing agreements

The Group’s o1l production operations in Azerbayan are conducted via vanous Production Shanng
Agreements ( PSA’) with the State o1l company (‘SOCAR’) Certain of these PSAs contain an
obligation to achieve specified production levels by a particular date A failure to achieve the required
production levels 1s regarded as a matenal breach of the relevant PSA and gives SOCAR the nght to
termunate the PSA Such a termination would, nter aha, result in the beneficial ownership of the fixed
and moveable assets used 1n the o1l production operations passing to SOCAR

At the date of approval of these financial statements the Group has not complhed with 1ts o1l production
obligations 1n respect of three (2011 four) of the PSAs withun the Group’s joint venture and has not
agreed an extension with SOCAR, albeit that 1t 15 in negotiations with SOCAR to do so Histoncally
the Group has successfully agreed extensions with SOCAR and the directors believe that the current
negotiations will eventually be successful The Group’s share of the aggregate net book value of the oil
field assets applicable to these PSA entities at 31 December 2012 was $296 9m (2011 $4722m) In
the unlikely event that the negotiations with SOCAR were not successful and the PSAs were terminated
the beneficial ownership of the relevant o1l field assets would pass to SOCAR and the Joint Venture
would lose the night to continue production from the o1l fields These financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would be necessary if the PSAs were to be termunated

Share pledge and bank covenant breach

On 14 October 2010, the Group acquired Barlen Holdings Linmited (‘Barlen’) whose principal asset was
1ts 99 89% holding 1n OAO Krasnoyarskkraugot (‘KKU’) Prior to the acquisiion Barlen had pledged
its shares in KKU to a bank as security mn respect of loans made by that bank to a company (‘the
borrower’) over which a close family member of the ultmate controlling party of the Group has
sigmficant influence The maximum borrowings secured by this pledge amounted to $2,897m (2011
$2,897m) and are repayable by the borrower 1n the period 2011 to 2016

The directors of the Company, having conferred with the borrower, believe that the probability of a
default by the borrower 1s low and even if there was a default, the likelthood of the bank enforcing the
pledge 1s considered to be remote

In the event of the pledge being enforced as a result of a default by the borrower, the Group would

cease to have beneficial ownership of KKU These consolidated financial statements include net assets
attributable to KKU of $42 41m (2011 $69 89m)

Subsequent to the year end, KKU breached an EBITDA covenant contained within the loan facilies
provided to KKU by the same bank who hold the share pledge These loan facilities are separate from
the facilities provided to the borrower and this 1s not an event of default under the borrower’s loan
facility with the bank.

As a result of the breach, bank loans to the Group, which totalled USD $95m as at 31 December 2012,
are now techmcally repayable on demand The directors of KKU have been in discussion with the
bank to rectify this breach and agree amended loan covenants to avoid a similar breach occurring in the
foreseeable future The directors of KKU confirmed that these discussions have been positive and they
are confident that the breach will be rectified and future covenant terms will be amended There 1s,
however, no certainty that such an agreement wall be reached

Investment agreement

On 5 October 2011, the Company entered into an investment agreement with the Republic of Belarus
to build a muning and processing complex for Potash in Belarus The Company’s total commitment
under this investment agreement 15 $1,522m over the period to 31 December 2020

Guarantee

On 11 May 2011, the Company entered 1nto an equity support guarantee agreement in connection with
a $70m loan facility to a related party company (“the borrower™) The guarantee provided by the
Company 1s capped at $30m and can be released when the borrower’s average daily oil production
reaches 13,000 barrels per day for a three month period The directors of the Company believe that it s
remote that the company will incur any Liability as a result of this guarantee
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Group

Related parties include shareholders, affil:ates and entities under common ownership and control with
the Group and members of key management personnel

Acquusitions from and disposals to related parties

In 2011 the Group disposed its 100% substdiary Edmamton Limited to a company under common
control for a consideration of $1,000 Further details are disclosed 1n note 35

In 2011 the Group sold 1ts wholly owned subsidiary Kura Valley Petroleurn Company to a company
under common contrel for a consideration of $31m  Further details are disclosed in note 36

Balances and transactions with related parties

At 31 December 2012 the Group's loan and interest receivable from a company under common control
was equal to SNt (2011 $1,620,000) Interest was not charged during the reporting year (2011
$150,000) As of the balance sheet date the Group had an impairment allowance on the loan receivable
from this party for the full amount of $1,620,000 (2011 $1,620,000)

At 31 December 2012 the Group had an outstanding balance of loan recervable including interest due
from a company under common control of $7,326,000 (2011 $7,326,000) The interest charge for the
year was not recogmized (2011 $379,000) As at 31 December 2012 the Group recogmsed an
impairment loss on the receiwvable from this related party for the amount of 36,062,000 (2011
$1,264,000), reducing the net carrying value in the accounts to zero (2011 $6,062,000)

At 31 December 2012, the Group's promissory notes payable by a Joint Venture in 2013 to a company
under common control total $245,000,000 (2011 $245,000,000) The interest accrued in the year
amounted to 515,968,000 (2011 $15,925,000), resulting m $75,829,000 (2011 $59,861,000) of
mterest payable as at 31 December 2012

The Group has received loans from a company which 1s owned by the trustees of a settlement of which
the ultimate controlling party 1s a beneficiary These loan principals amounted to $513 9m at 31
December 2012 (2011 $520 7m} The interest accrued 1n respect of these loans for the year ended 31
December 2012 amounted to $49 1m (2011 $43 4m), of which $11 4m (201! $6 1m) was unpaid at
31 December 2012 Interest accrues on these loans at rates between 6% and 10% per annum

Dunng the year, the Group provided additional borrowings to a company under common control in the
amount of $3,213,000 (2011 $10,170,000) These toans accrue imnterest at 10% pa and the Group
recognused interest income of $266,000 (2011 $572,000) 1n the year At 31 December 2012, the full
amount of loan principal and accrued interest was repaid to the Group with 34,047,000 bemng
outstanding as of 31 December 2011

In 2012 the Group made sales of coal of $22,756,000 (2011 $16,361,000) to an entity under a common
control, of which $17,057,000 was outstanding at 31 December 2012 (2011 $14,976,000) and was
mcluded 1n other receivables after recogmsing an impairment allowance of $7,274,000 (2011 $Nil)

The Group’s key management personnel compnsed 7 people as at both 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011 Total compensation to key management personnel approximated 32 379m and
$2 297m for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, respectively and 1s disclosed in note 7
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Company

Durning 2012, the Company charged consulting fees to a subsidiary amounting to $1 185m (2011
$2 495m) and received dividend income from subsidianes of $7 242m (2011 $5 191m)

The Company’s management personnel are the 3 directors as at both 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011 Total compensation to key management personnel approximated $0981m and
$£1 034m for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, respectively and 1s disclosed in note 7

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

A new Reserve Based Lending syndicated facility for $100m was successfully closed on the 18th of
Apnl 2013 The syndication included BNP Paribas, Deutsche Bank, Amsterdam Trade Bank NV and
the Federated Project and Trade Finance Core Fund The facility matures on the 31 December 2016

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The company and the group has early adopted IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, IFRS 11
“Jomnt Arrangements”’, IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities™, IAS 27 (as amended in
2011) “Separate Financial Statements” and IAS 28 (as amended 1n 2011) “Investments 1n Associates
and Joint Ventures” for the preparation of these financial statements

The impact on the financial statements 1s that the group’s 50% equity shareholding (and voting nghts)
n Global Energy Azerbayan Limited (“GEAL”) that was previously accounted for as a joint venture
using proportionate consolidation 15 a subsidiary under IFRS 10

As all the directors of GEAL are representatives of GEA Holdings Limited and the shareholders’
agreement does not give the other 50% shareholder nghts to appouwnt or remove any directors, n the
opuuon of the directors, GEA Holdings Limited controls GEAL 1n accordance with the definutions n
with IFRS 10 and GEAL 1s, therefore, a substchary

The other 1mpact of the early adoption of these new accounting standards 1s that joint venture interests
are incorporated into the group accounts using the equity method of accounting as opposed to the
group’s previous accounting policy of proportionate consohdation This change 1n policy impacts the
accounting for the joint venture mterest of CaspiNeft, which was acquired during the year and 1s further
disclosed tn note 15 There 15 no material impact on profit for the year, total comprehensive income for
the year or net assets as a result of this change of policy

The impact of this change of accounting for GEAL and 1ts subsidiaries on the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of cash
flows for 2011 1s set out below The financial impact on the 2012 financial statements has not been
calculated, but as there have been no changes to the sub-group headed by GEAL for 2012, the directors
consider that the impact on the 2012 financial statements 15 sumilar to the impact disclosed below
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2011 Full restated  Proportionate
consohidation consohidation Impact
£°000 £000 £°000
Revenue 389,609 261,200 128,409
Other income 36,715 34,542 2,173
Expenses (230,231) (182,460) (78,733)
Finance costs (63,082) (42,481) (20,601)
Taxation - - -
Profit for the year 102,049 70,801 31,248
Consolidated statement of financial position
31 December 2011 Full restated Proportionate
consohdation consolidation Impact
£000 £000 £°000
Non-current assets 729,522 518,609 210,953
Current assets 120,790 84,430 36,360
Current habilities 162,183 83,277 78,906
Non-current habilities 765,167 5,22.220 242,947
Net habilities (77,038) (2,458) (74,580)
Equity attributable to parent (994) (2,458) 1,464
Non-controlling interests (76,044) - {76,044)
Total equity (77,038) (2,458) {74,580)
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 December 2011 Full restated  Proportionate
consolidation consolidation Impact
£000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities 143,149 98,961 44,188
Cash flows from investing activities (58,390) (25,263) (33,127)
Cash flows from financing activities (84,119) (73,412) (10,707)
Net increase 1n cash and cash equivalents
1n the year 493 189 304
34 PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present 1ts
own statement of comprehensive income for the year The Company reported a profit for the financial

year ended 31 December 2012 of $12,985m (2011 loss of 30 810m)
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37

ULTIMATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The Company 1s jointly controlled by Weistein Limited and Demupliet Limited and the Company’s
ultimate parent company 1s Rali Holdings Limuted  All of these parent compames are incorporated 1n
the Brntish Virgin Islands and none of them produce publicly available financial statements The
ultimate controlling party 1s Mr S Gutsenev

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In January 2011 the Group disposed of its subsidiary Edmamton Limuted to a company under common
control for $1,000 The gain on disposal of the subsidiary s set out below

$'000
Consideration received 1
Less Net liabilittes as at the date of disposal 996
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary 997

In September 2011 the Group sold its subsichary “Balakhtinsky Coal” OO0 The gain on disposal of
the subsidiary 1s set out below

$°000
Consideration recewved 1,978
Less Net assets as at the date of disposal, attributable to the Shareholders of
the Parent Company (333)
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1,645

The results of the discontinued operations for the period to the disposal date dunng the year ended 31
December 2011 were not considered to be significant and, therefore, were not included above

The assets and habilities of both these companies were classified as disposal groups held for sale as at
31 December 2010

PROFIT ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKING

In Apnl 2011 the Group sold its wholly owned subsidiary Kura Valley Petroleum Company (“KVPC™)
and 1ts subsidianies 10 a related party for the total consideration of $31m The maimn reason for the
disposal of subsidiary was the limited proved o1l reserves and sigruficant capital expenditures required
in order to aclueve production which would make 1t economucally viable for the group The gain on
disposal of the subsidiary undertaking is set out below

$000
Consideration recewved 31,000
Less Net liabilities as at the date of disposal 616
Net gamn on disposal of a subsidiary 31,616

$31m of the consideration was received dunng the vears ended 31 December 2011 and 2012
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
On 10 November 2011 the Group acquired 80% of the share capital of “Razrez Sayano-Partizansky"
000, which core operauons are black coal mming The prnimary reason for the acquisition was to

continue diversification into coal mining

The transaction was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting

Fair value
10 November
2011
$°000
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED
Property, plant and equipment 54,892
Intangible assets 21
Income tax prepayments 2
Inventories 428
Trade and other receivables 138
Cash and cash equivalent 142
TOTAL ASSETS 55,623
Trade and other payables 578
Borrowings 5472
Provision 217
Deferred tax 10,363
TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,630
Farr value of 1dentifiable assets and liabilities 38,993
Less non controlling interest (7,798)
31,195
Cash consideration paid {30,203)
Gain on acquisition 992
Cash consideration paid 30,203
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (142)
Net cash outflow arising from business combination 30,061

Gam on a “bargain purchase” (negative goodwill) amounted to $992,000 and has been recogmised as
other income for the year

In 2012 the Group acquired additional 20% of the share capital of “Razrez Sayano-Partizansky" QOO
resulung 1n 100% ownership as at 31 December 2012 Cost of the investment amounted to USD $10m
paid m cash before the end of the year ended 31 December 2012 The excess of the consideration paid
over the book value of non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition has been deducted from equity
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